IN THE
SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

~~116~~ 045

FILED

SID J. WHITE

APR 19 1991

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By _____
Deputy Clerk

Bill J. White

MAX FENELON,
Petitioner,

vs.

No. 77,765

4 DCA No. 89-0881

STATE OF FLORIDA,
Respondent.

PETITIONER'S
JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF

Max Fenelon, #185136
Charlotte Correctional Institution
33123 Oil Well Road, MN-976
Punta Gorda, FL 33955
Petitioner, Pro se

ISSUE PRESENTED

Does Fenelon v. State, 512 So.2d (Fla. 4th DCA No. 89-0881, 2/13/91) conflict with Merritt v. State, 523 So.2d 573 (Fla. 1988); Shively v. State, 474 So.2d 352 (Fla. 5th DCA 1985); Proffitt v. State, 315 So.2d 461 (Fla. 1975), under the facts of the case and similar point of law, to the detriment of petitioner's right to a fair and reliable determination of his guilt or innocence under the laws and constitutions of Florida and the United States?

The jury was instructed, over objections, that FL 8.011. A person accused of a crime raises no presumption of guilt. But that is a circumstance that goes to the jury to be considered by you with all the other testimony. And the circumstances should be given such weight as you may determine it [is] entitled to. And the rule is when a suspected person in any manner endeavors to escape or by threatened prosecution attempts by flight or concealment such may [be] then one of [a] series of circumstances [from] which guilt may be inferred.

(R 707-708)

Such a misinformed jury instruction deprived this petitioner a fair and reliable determination of his guilt or innocence, requiring a quashing of the Fenelon v. State decision, under Merritt v. State, 523 So.2d 573 (Fla. 1988) as well as Shively v. State, 474 So.2d 352 (Fla. 5th DCA 1985) and Proffitt

1. State, 315 So.2d 461 (Fla. 1975).

This Court should grant certiorari and redefine the jury instruction on flight, since the currently used instruction misinforms a jury on its application.

Petitioner is entitled to a properly instructed jury as a constitutional right. Cf. Mathews v. United States, 485 U.S. 58, 108 S.Ct. 883, 99 L.Ed.2d 51 (1988).

Analytically, "flight" is an admission by conduct and its probative value as circumstantial evidence of guilt depends on the degree of confidence which four inferences can be drawn: 1) from defendant's behavior to flight; 2) from flight to consciousness of guilt; 3) from consciousness of guilt to consciousness of guilt concerning the criminal offense charged; and 4) from consciousness of guilt concerning the criminal offense charged to actual guilt of the crime charged. A flight instruction is improper unless the evidence is sufficient to furnish reasonable support for all four of the necessary inferences.

In the trial at bar, the jury was not informed of these four inferences in giving weight to the circumstances of flight; therefore, the flight instruction invaded the fact-finders' province by the presumption of guiltiness without question. — A serious constitutional violation in this case.

This Court should reconsider flight instruction and, perhaps, except the herein above four inferences or such other
1. United States v. Myers, 550 F.2d 1036 (5th Cir. 1977), appeal after remand, 572 F.2d 506, Cert. den., 439 U.S. 817, 99 S.Ct. 147, 58 L.Ed.2d 149.

modification of present flight instruction language to assure criminal convictions are based upon competent evidence beyond a reasonable doubt rather than a mere presumption based upon conduct that does not have an "index of reliability." This court should limit the weight to be given such speculative evidence of flight as has been done in other jurisdictions. United States v. Myers, supra; Commonwealth v. Matos, 476 N.E. 2d 608 (Mass. 1985); State v. Wrenn, — Idaho Sup. Ct. —, 24 CrL 2153 (1978)

The Matos court held it to be reversible error for the trial court to refuse to instruct the jury, once such evidence has been introduced, that since there are numerous reasons why an innocent person might flee, flight or similar conduct does not necessarily reflect feelings of guilt, and even where a person's flight does demonstrate feelings of guilt, it does not necessarily mean that the person is guilty, since feelings of guilt are sometimes present in innocent people as well.

The Wrenn court held that because of the debatable significance of flight as evidence of guilt, an instruction on flight should not ordinarily be given. It should be left to argument to the jury by the parties, unless the trial judge because of the peculiar facts in the particular case feels it is essential to the jury's deliberations. *** For departure to take on the legal significance of flight, there must be other circumstances present and unexplained which, together with the departure, reasonably justify an inference that it was done with a consciousness of guilt and in an

effort to avoid apprehension or prosecution based on that guilt."

In the present case, Petitioner Admitted that he ran away from the scene of the shooting. But there was no other evidence indicating that this action was the result of his fear of prosecution or consciousness of guilt. To the contrary, the evidence at trial was just as consistent with the explanation given by Petitioner at trial, that he ran away out of fear and surprise at having just seen a murder committed. (Other witnesses who did not testify at trial supported this Nation's account of what happened.) Fearful of his own life, the Petitioner ran down the street, shouting, "the nigger shot the lady."... certainly betrays a guilty state of mind — particularly when other witnesses' testimony did not relate these series of events following the "pop of the gun."

This Court should disapprove the Fenelon decision and remand with directions to vacate convictions and sentences, having shown that the jury instruction did not meet constitutional muster under the Due Process Clause of the 14th Amendment and conflicts with decisions of this Court and other District Courts of Appeals.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the Court should grant discretionary writ of certiorari review and disapprove the Fenelon v. State decision and set forth proper

guidelines as to when, if, flight instruction should be given by a trial judge, lest the constitutional rights of defendants be trammelled by deficient instruction on flight.