024  
**FILED**

SID J. WHITE

**MAY 1 1991**

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By \_\_\_\_\_  
Chief Deputy Clerk

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 77,765

MAX FENELON,

Petitioner,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

\*\*\*\*\*

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

\*\*\*\*\*

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH  
Attorney General  
Tallahassee, Florida

JAMES J. CARNEY  
Assistant Attorney General  
111 Georgia Avenue  
Suite 204  
(407) 837-5062  
Florida Bar #475246

Counsel for Respondent

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Max Fenelon was the defendant below and shall be referred to as "petitioner," in this brief. The State of Florida shall be referred to as "respondent."

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent does not agree with petitioner's statement of the case and facts as they contain purported facts which are not found in the opinion. The argument portion of his brief also improperly contains alleged facts not found in the opinion.

Fenelon v. State, 575 So.2d 264 (Fla. 4th DCA 1991), indicates that petitioner was sentenced after being found guilty of first degree murder and attempted robbery with a firearm. Appellant argued that the trial judge erred in instructing the jury, over his objection, on flight from the crime scene. He argued that evidence of flight, standing alone was insufficient to support such an instruction. The Fourth District found ample evidence of flight to support the instruction. One witness testified that on the morning of the shooting, appellant, whom he had known for a year, told him that he was going to "jack" someone. The witness interpreted this statement as meaning that appellant intended to commit a robbery. A second witness who knew appellant testified that she saw him running past a restaurant at about 4:30 p.m. on the date of the shooting. She also testified that she saw what appeared to be the handle of a gun protruding from appellant's pocket. Another friend of appellant's testified that she saw appellant that evening and he told her that he had been holding a gun that discharged and a lady was shot. The court held that this evidence was sufficient to support an instruction on flight. 575 So.2d at

265.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal in this case does not directly and expressly conflict with a decision of any district court or this Court. All the cases cited by petitioner are consistent with this case.

## ARGUMENT

THE DECISION OF THE COURT OF APPEAL IN THIS CASE DOES NOT DIRECTLY AND EXPRESSLY CONFLICT WITH A DECISION OF ANOTHER DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OR THIS COURT ON THE SAME QUESTION OF LAW.

In order for two court decisions to be in express and direct conflict for the purpose of invoking this Court's discretionary jurisdiction under Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), the decisions should speak to the same point of law, in factual contexts of sufficient similarity to permit the inference that the result in each case would have been different had the deciding court employed the reasoning of the other court. See generally Mancini v. State, 312 So.2d 732 (Fla. 1975). In Jenkins v. State, 385 So.2d 1356, 1359 (Fla. 1980), this Court defined the limited parameters of its conflict review as follows:

This Court may only review a decision of a district court of appeal that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal or the Supreme Court on the same question of law. The dictionary definition of the terms 'express' include: 'to represent in words'; to give expression to.' 'Expressly' is defined: 'in an express manner.' Webster's Third New International Dictionary (1961 ed. unabr.)

See generally Ansin v. Thurston, 101 So.2d 808 (Fla. 1958); Withlacoochee River Electric Co-op v. Tampa Electric Company, 158 So.2d 136 (Fla. 1963), cert. denied, 377 U.S. 952, 84 S.Ct. 1628, 12 L.Ed.2d 497 (1964); and England and Williams, Florida Appellate Reform One Year Later, 9 F.S.U. L. Rev. 221 (1981). See also Mystal Marine, Inc. v. Harrington, 339



So.2d 200, 210 (Fla. 1976) (This Court's discretionary jurisdiction is directed to a concern with decisions as precedents, not adjudications of the rights of particular litigants).

Petitioner recites what he purports to be an instruction read to the jury in this case. This instruction was not part of the opinion below and therefore cannot form the basis for any claimed conflict jurisdiction. The error claimed at the District Court level and discussed in the opinion was sufficiency of the evidence to support a jury instruction.

Proffitt v. State, 315 So.2d 467 (Fla. 1975), affd., 428 U.S. 242, 96 S.Ct. 2960, 49 L.Ed.2d 913 (1976), is consistent with the decision here. Proffitt held that a defendant's leaving the scene at the time of the crime is insufficient, standing alone, to support a flight instruction. This Court concluded in Proffitt, as did the court in Fenelon that there was more evidence than mere flight. Id. at 464. Accordingly, the instruction in both cases was proper.

Similarly, there is absolutely nothing in Shively v. State, 474 So.2d 352 (Fla. 5th DCA 1985) or Merritt v. State, 523 So.2d 573 (Fla. 1988), that conflict with the opinion here. Shively held that ". . . a jury can be instructed on flight when the evidence clearly establishes that an accused fled the vicinity of a crime or did anything indicating an intent to avoid detection or capture." Id. at 353. Merritt held that "Flight evidence is admissible as relevant to the defendant's consciousness of guilt where